

# Three Deadly Species Only One Can Survive

Three diverse and bloodthirsty species battle for survival on Planet LV1201. Choose to play as an Alien, a Predator or a Marine. Fight your way through 21 intense single-player missions set in 3 interlocking storylines. Or play online as one of 17 characters in 12 multiplayer levels including Species Team Maps and Deathmatch. Sequel to one of the most frightening games ever made, Aliens vs. Predator 2 brings you heart-stopping action more terrifying than the blockbuster sci-fi films on which it is based.

- Marine: Loaded with a pulse-rifle, flamethrower, rocket launcher, shotgun and more.
- Alien: Gifted with deadly speed, razor-sharp claws, and a lethal jaw attack.
- Predator: Armed with wrist blades, shoulder cannon, 2-handed spear, and net gun.



ALIENS PREDATOR



© 2000-2001 Mondith Productions, Inc. All rights reserved. © 2001 Twentieth Century Fox Film Corporation.
Fox Interactive, The Operative, No One Lives Forever, Allens us. Predelar and their respective logics are trademarks of Twentieth Century Fox Film Corporation. Silera and the 'S' logo are trademarks of Silera On-Line, Inc. The ratings icon is a registered trademark or trademark of the IDSA. Uses Bink Video Technology. @ 1994-2001 by RAD Game Tools, Inc. All other marks are the property of their respective owners.

Developed by

HONOLITH Connect with other players via

BINK

GAME OF THE YEAR EDITION

THE OPERATIVE

Developed by

MONOLITH



★★★★ Computer Games GAME OF THE YEAR

Now Includes: All New Mission and CD Soundtrack

**SIERRA** 

Fox Interactive and Sierra Present: A Monolith Production of

THE OPERATIVE™ in

# No One Lives Forever

No One Lives Forever ™ is powered by LITHTECH ™

Check out the official No One Lives Forever ™ website at www.the-operative.com

Check out other Monolith titles at www.lith.com

Check out other Sierra titles at www.sierra.com

# SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

MINIMUM SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS
WINDOWS® 95/98/ME/2000
DIRECT X™ 7.0 OR HIGHER
PENTIUM® II 300 MHZ
64 MB RAM
8 MB 3D HARDWARE ACCELERATOR CARD WITH DIRECT 3D™ SUPPORT
HIGH COLOR GRAPHICS (16-BIT)
4X CD-ROM
MOUSE
KEYBOARD
56K MODEM OR LAN FOR MULTIPLAYER
500 MB FREE HARD DRIVE SPACE
DIRECT X COMPATIBLE 16-BIT SOUND CARD



THE OPERATIVE

# No One Lives Forever

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	TABLE OF CONTENTS	
	INSTALLING THE GAME	3
	MENUS AND INTERFACE SYSTEM	4
	Single Player Menus	4
	Multiplayer Menus	6
	Options Menus	
	Cross-hair System	
	TOYMAKER'S WORKSHOP	12
	Using Weapons and Gadgets	
	Weapons and Gadgets List	12
	Ammunition Types	
	Weapon Modifications	
	Gear	16
	DEFAULT KEY CONFIGURATION CHART	17
	AGENT TRAINING	19
	AGENT TRAININGBasic Training	19
	Weapons and Gadgets Tactics	20
	Environmental Hazards	
	Using Vehicles	
	Multiplayer Tactics	22
	CREDITS	24
	CUSTOMER SERVICE, SUPPORT AND SALES	29
	NOTICE TO USER	31

# INSTALLING THE GAME

Please review the readme.file located on the CD for the most up-to-date information.

To begin, insert the The Operative™ No One Lives Forever Disc 1 into your CD-ROM drive. If AutoRun is enabled on your computer, the install screen should appear within a few seconds. **Install**: This option will launch the setup utility. Follow the on screen prompts to navigate through the setup screens as follows:

In the Select Destination Directory screen, click Next to install to the default folder, or click Browse to install to a different folder on your hard drive.

In the Install Type screen, you may choose from one of three possible installation methods:

The **Normal** Installation requires 1.1 gigabytes of free hard disk space and will copy both the game and all game data. For maximum performance, use this option.

The **Minimum** installation option requires 500 megabytes of disk space and will copy only the game files to your hard drive and leaves all levels and other data on the CD. This option is recommended if you need to conserve hard drive space.

In the **Select Program Folder** screen, simply click **Next** to add Fox Interactive/ No One Lives Forever to the default folder in your Start menu, or specify a different folder.

Once Setup is complete, click Next to exit the installer.

**Uninstali:** This option becomes available only after the game has been installed. It allows you to easily remove the game files from your hard drive. Please note that other programs may share certain installation files, so you may be prompted for confirmation before some of these files are removed.

Install DirectX 7.0: This option is required if you do not already have Microsoft's DirectX version 7.0 or higher installed on your computer.

Read Me: Provides useful information on installing and starting the game, as well as last minute information that didn't make it into this manual.

# MENUS AND INTERFACE SYSTEM

The following options are available from the game's Main Menu:

Single Player: Access this menu if you wish to play through the single player missions in No One Lives Forever.

Continue: This option is only available once you have begun playing the single player missions. It will allow you to pick up where you left off in single player mode by automatically reloading your last saved game.

Multiplayer: Access the menu to play a Deathmatch or H.A.R.M. vs. UNITY Team Deathmatch against other players on a LAN or on the Internet via GameSpy.

**Options:** Here you can change display and sound settings, game difficulty, and customize your controls.

Quit: Allows you to quit the game and return to Windows.

# SINGLE PLAYER MENUS

Select Mission: This menu will display all of the missions

that are currently available to you. At first, only one mission will be available. As you progress through the game, each

mission you complete will remain in this menu for you to play again later. To begin, just click on the name of the mission you want to play. You will then be given a **Mission Briefing** and the opportunity to customize your weapons and gadgets.

Mission Briefing: An overview of the mission that you chose. Click Next to Continue, or Back to return to the Select Mission Screen.

Mission Objectives: A list of tasks you must complete to successfully conclude the mission. More objectives may be added to this list during the course of the mission. You may bring up these objectives again at any time during the game by holding down the View Objectives key.

**Default Equipment**: Selecting this option will automatically equip you with the basic weapons and gadgets necessary to complete the upcoming mission. Once you have selected this option, the **Inventory Summary** screen is displayed.

**Select Equipment:** Selecting this option will give you much greater control over the Items you choose to equip for a given mission.

Weapon Selection: At the top left of the screen are your available weapon slots. A slot marked with a red X means this item is critical to your mission and cannot be deselected. Any box with a check mark indicates a weapon that can be replaced with another from the list below. If you want to replace a weapon that has been selected for you, just click on its name to reveal an empty slot. Next, click on the name of the weapon you would like to replace or simply leave this slot empty.

The first time you go through a mission, you will only choose from a few weapons. As you progress through the game, more will become available to you. When ready to continue, click **Next**.

Gadget Selection: Choose your gadgets the same way you chose your weaponry. When ready to continue, click Next.

Modification Selection: On this menu, you may select the weapon modifications you wish to carry. This includes Items such as scopes and silencers. The modifications available depend upon the weapons you have already selected in the previous screen. When ready to continue, click Next.

Gear Selection: Here you may select the special gear you desire for the upcoming mission. This includes items such as a fire extinguisher to protect against burn damage, fuzzy slippers to soften footsteps and SCUBA gear for underwater exploration. When ready to continue, click Next.

Inventory Summary: This screen will display a list of all of the weapons, gadgets, mods, and gear you have selected for the upcoming mission. In addition, you will be able to view any gadget modes or ammo types available for the items you have selected. For example, the Barrette gadget may have both a lock-pick and a poison capsule mode available. If you want to make any changes, click Back. If you're ready to go, click Start Mission.

NOTE: To view the items in your possession, you can access your inventory screen at any time during the game by selecting the Inventory key.

Save Game: Save your existing game.

Load Game: Load a previously saved game or restart the current mission.

#### **MULTIPLAYER MENUS**

Please review the readme.file located on the CD for the most up-to-date information.

Player Setup: Here's where you can customize your character for multiplayer games. You can customize the following aspects of your character:

Player Name: Type in the name you want to use here. Make sure to hit <ENTER> after you type in your name.

Preferred Team: Choose either UNITY, H.A.R.M., or No Preference. The choice you make will only affect which team you are on. Choosing H.A.R.M. vs. UNITY (Team Deathmatch) will not restrict which player models you can use. If you choose no preference, you will be randomly assigned to a team.

Player Model: There are over 40 models available to you in No One Lives Forever. Choose the one you prefer.

Join Internet Game: Allows you to Join a multiplayer game already in progress. When you select this option, GameSpy will search for available servers around the world and list them for you. The Join Game screen provides several options for customizing the server list as follows:

Refresh Server List: This option will command GameSpy to update the list of available servers and all related information.

All Games: Click on this to toggle between the type of game you are interested in joining.

Any Number of Players: This acts as a filter and a list based on the number of people currently playing.

Join Game: Once you have clicked and highlighted the server you want to join, click on this to connect.

Host: Allows you to host your own multiplayer game. The following options are available:

Session Name: Type the name of your session here.

Game Type: You can select either a Deathmatch game or a H.A.R.M. vs. UNITY Team Deathmatch.

Game Options: For up to date information on how to set Deathmatch and Cooperative Assault options, see the Readme file.

Levels: Use this option to determine which levels to play. Simply click on the level you want to add and then click on the **Add level** option. Or, use the **Add All** option to cycle though all of the available levels. If you need to remove a specific level from the queue, just click on the level name, and then click on **Remove**. If you wish to remove all of the levels from the queue, click on **Remove All**. In addition, if you choose to create custom multiplayer maps, they will be available here.

Lock Server: Toggle this to "On" if you wish to restrict your game to certain players by providing a password.

Password: If Lock server is set to "On", you can use this option to specify the password that is needed to join your game.

Launch: Once all server options have been set, use this to launch the game.

### **OPTIONS MENUS**

**Display:** Click on this option to access the game's graphics options. The following items will become available:

**Display**: This shows the video driver that is currently being used to render the game.

Resolution: Allows you to select what resolution matches your preferences.

Texture Depth: Both 16-bit (default) and 32-bit

texture depths are available. Enabling 32-bit mode will offer significant graphical improvements but will require higher system requirements. Check to see whether your card supports 32-bit textures.

Sound: Here you may adjust sound FX and music settings.

Controls: Lets you customize the keyboard, mouse and joystick settings.

NOTE: Some menus will have an arrow at the bottom. This means that there are more items to set. Click the arrow to go to the next screen.

Configure controls: This option allows you to remap your keyboard, mouse, or controller to the various actions available in the game.

**Mouse**: This option provides various controls that you can use to customize how your mouse interacts with the game.

Always mouse look (No/Yes): The user is always able to look around with the mouse (instead of pushing a button to look around with the mouse).

Mouse sensitivity (slider): Controls the speed at which your view swings around in response to mouse movement.

Mouse smoothing (silder): Scales mouse input rate for smoother or jerkier but more responsive movement.

**Invert y axis (No/Yes):** Toggles vertical mouse movement. If inverted, moving the mouse up will move your view down.

Vehicle Turn Speed: Determines how fast vehicles will turn when the mouse is moved.

**Keyboard:** This option provides various controls that you can use to customize how your keyboard interacts with the game.

Normal turn speed (slider): If you turn with the keyboard, this determines how fast you will turn when you are walking.

Fast turn speed (slider): If you turn with the keyboard, this determines how fast you will turn when you are running.

Up/Down look speed (slider): If you look up and down with the keyboard, this determines how fast you will look up and down.

Vehicle Turn Speed: Determines how fast vehicles will turn when the keyboard is used.

Use Joystick (Yes/No): Enables joystick controls.

**Configure Joystick**: This option provides various controls that you can use to customize how your joystick interacts with the game.

Restore defaults: Reverts all controls back to the original configuration.

Game Options: Allows you to set specific game options to your taste.

**Crosshair Customization**: Customize the look, color, and transparency of your crosshair.

Use Crosshair: If this option is turned on, then a crosshair sight will appear in the middle of your screen to make targeting enemies and objects easier.

**Opacity**: Moving this setting all the way to the Right will make the crosshair a solid color, while moving it farther to the Left will increase its transparency.

Red/Green/Blue: Use these options together to customize the color of the crosshair. Moving the slider bar to the Right for each of these options will increase the amount of that color.

**Dynamic Scaling:** When the dynamic option is enabled in the menu, your crosshair will scale in size to reflect your accuracy. The larger it is, the worse your aim. Generally, your accuracy improves when standing still and worsens while moving.

Style: Toggle between basic, crossbar, dot-cross, post, dot, and corner styles of crosshair.

Subtities (Off/On): When turned on, subtitles will appear at the bottom of the screen whenever relevant in-game dialogue is heard.

**Blood (Off/On):** When turned on, Blood splatters will appear on walls and floors when the player or an AI are shot.

Fade Bodies (Off/On): When turned on, bodies of slain AI will fade away over time.

Always Run (No/Yes): When turned on, the player is always running.

**Difficulty:** There are four difficulty modes in No One Lives Forever: Easy, Normal, Hard and Super Spy. The difficulty setting primarily affects enemies in the game, making them more or less accurate or responsive to external stimuli such as footsteps, weapon fire, etc.

**Heads Up Display Style**: Toggles between various HUD configurations. The state of your current health, armor, and ammo can be displayed either via text or graphics.

**Performance Options**: If your game is running poorly, you may enable or disable a variety of features within the game. More information may be available on these options in the Readme.txt available with this game.

**Current Weapon/Gadget (Center):** The weapon/gadget you are currently holding appears here. When you click the fire button you will use the Item in your hands.

Health/Armor Meter (Bottom left): The red meter indicates how much health you have. The blue meter indicates armor. Body armor will completely absorb most types of damage. Once it is depleted, your health will deteriorate rapidly. If your health runs out, you will die. Your health will be restored at the start of each new mission.

Ammo (Bottom right): The numbers in the ammo section display the amount of ammo available for the currently selected weapon. The number on the left and the yellow meter represent the rounds remaining in the magazine. Once that reaches zero, you will automatically reload. You may also manually reload at any time. The number on the right and the blue meter display the total amount of ammo that you are carrying for that gun. Be warned that certain weapons may share ammunition.

#### **CROSSHAIR SYSTEM**

Crosshairs come in a number of different shapes and colors. You can adjust your crosshair by going into the **Options/Game Options/Crosshair** menu. In addition, No One Lives Forever features a dynamic cross-hair system to alert you to special objects or characters.



**UNARMED CROSSHAIR:** A small dot will appear in the middle of the screen to signify that you are unarmed.



**ACTIVATE CROSSHAIR:** When your crosshair moves over an item or person that you may activate in some way, this crosshair will appear. Selecting the Use button will then activate the item. For example, you may open a door or trigger a conversation with a bystander.



**GADGET CROSSHAIR:** If you have a gadget equipped, this crosshair will appear if you highlight an object with which the gadget may be used. For example, if you are holding the Barrette lock pick and center your view over a padlock, your crosshair will change.



INNOCENT CROSSHAIR: As an operative for UNITY, your job is to protect the civilian population. If you have a weapon equipped and target an innocent, this crosshair will appear. Killing innocents will result in mission failure.

# TOYMAKER'S WORKSHOP

### **USING WEAPONS AND GADGETS**

You will have access to a wide variety of weapons and gadgets as you play through the game. Typically, you will have access to between five to eight items per mission. To select a different item from your inventory, press either the Next Weapon or Previous Weapon key and then hit Fire to equip your selection.

Taking the time to equip yourself appropriately at the beginning of a mission can have a significant effect on gameplay. For example, a stealthy player will equip a variety of silenced weapons and gadgets such as the Camera Disabler or the Robotic Poodle. A player less focused on stealth may select a variety of explosive devices. As the game progresses, more and more items will become available.

In addition, most weapons and some gadgets support different functions. For example, the Shepherd Arms P38 9mm accepts several ammunition types which alter the effectiveness of the weapon against certain targets.

Also, certain gadgets have multiple modes of operation, such as the Barrette's lock pick and weapon modes. Use the Next Function key to cycle between the various modes or ammo types available for the currently selected item.

# **WEAPONS AND GADGETS LIST**

Below is a summary of some of the items you'll encounter, as well as the mods and ammunition available for each:



#### Shepherd Arms P38 9mm

This 9mm semi-automatic pistol was used extensively by Allied covert operatives during World War II. It is easily concealed and very reliable. It has a 10 round magazine and can be fitted with a silencer. Standard Ammo: 9mm Full Metal Jacket ammunition.



#### Petri .38 Alrweight revolver

Agent Archer's signature weapon is a small, lightweight .38 caliber five-shot revolver. While admittedly a bit slow on the reload, it can readily accommodate a variety of ammunition types. It's also easy to conceal. Standard Ammo: .38 caliber Full Metal Jacket ammunition.



#### Hampton MPL 9mm SMG

A vicious little 9mm sub-machine gun. Flegantly simple and hardy. Standard Ammo: 9mm Full Metal Jacket ammunition



#### AK-47 Assault Rifle

Standard Eastern Bloc military issue assault rifle, Renowned for its simple design and rugged construction. It is reliable and easy to maintain. It uses a 30 round magazine. Standard Ammo: 45 caliber Automatic Colt Pistol ammunition



#### M79 Grenade Launcher

Standard issue U.S. Army 40mm grenade launcher, Rugged and reliable, Takes High Explosive rocket-propelled grenades which explode upon impact.



#### **Hampton Carbine**

A bolt action .45 caliber sniper rifle with integral suppressor. The Hampton Carbine is one of the world's only truly silent firearms. Standard Ammo: .45 caliber Automatic Colt Pistol ammunition.



#### Sunglasses

These perfectly ordinary-looking sunglasses can be fitted with three unique functions. Use the Next Function key to cycle through the various modes.



Standard zoomable spy camera module for sunglasses. This function will allow you to zoom in and take pictures of far away events.



A mine detection module that can be installed on sunglasses. You will need to use this device to navigate difficult mine fields found within the game.



An infrared spectrograph module that can be installed on sunglasses. Use the mode to detect hidden lasers.



#### Camera Disabler

A nifty device that, when mounted on a security camera, creates looping footage of the scene from the camera's perspective, thereby neutralizing it. Unfortunately, this device can only be used on cameras directly within your reach!



#### Code Breaker

Attaches to a 10-button keypad and runs through number combinations in order to decipher security codes. The more sophisticated the device, the longer it will take to break the code.



#### Coin

When thrown, a coin can distract an unwary enemy, giving you an opportunity to sneak past.



#### Rarrette

A fashionable plastic barrette which can be fitted with two separate functions. Use the Next Function key to cycle through the Barrette's modes.



A retractable lockpick attachment ideal for bypassing certain keyed padlocks. Of course, the more complicated the mechanism, the longer it will take to pick. Note that the Barrette only works on padlocks with keyholes.



In its secondary mode, the Barrette functions as a poisoned melee



# **Cigarette Lighter**

A basic cigarette lighter which can be fitted with two functions. Use the Next Function key to cycle through the Lighter's modes.



A Lighter, Useful for lighting cigarettes or starting fires.



A miniaturized welder attachment that can be used to cut through some metal locks. Look for locks with dials instead of keyholes.



# **Lipstick Impact Explosive**

A deadly explosive disguised as woman's lipstick. It detonates on impact when thrown.



#### **Perfume Sleeping Gas**

This attractive perfume bottle dispenses powerful sleeping gas capable of incapacitating an adult moose, let alone the standard, garden-variety hoodlum. Be careful not to use this item on enemies too near or you may find yourself asleep next to your enemy!



#### **Decay Powder**

This powder rapidly dissolves non-living tissue—an excellent way to hide bodies from guards and cameras.





Select this option to put away your weapon. Your karate chop is only effective against adversaries that are not alert. You can take them down with one chop to the neck. Note that you may also quickly hide your weapon with the **Holster Weapon** key.

#### **AMMUNITION TYPES:**

To cycle through available ammunition types for a weapon, you will need to rely upon the **Next Function** key.



# **Full Metal Jacket Ammunition**

Standard Full Metal Jacket (FMJ) ammunition. Good penetration, but only modest stopping power.



#### **Dum Dum Ammunition**

Dum dums are rounds that have been modified to expand upon impact, thereby inflicting greater damage. Unfortunately, they are less effective against armored targets, so use them wisely.



# **Phosphorous Ammunition**

Phosphorous-coated tracer rounds which continue to burn upon impact and damage soft targets.

#### **WEAPON MODIFICATIONS:**

#### Silencers

When attached to a weapon, a silencer greatly reduces the muzzle noise, making it easier to kill enemies without causing an uproar and alerting nearby enemies.

#### Scopes

A scope will allow you to zoom in for a closer view of a distant target. Different scopes have different zoom lengths and several feature multiple zooms. In addition, some scopes enable night vision. Use the **Zoom In** and **Zoom Out** keys to adjust the zoom level.

### GEAR:

Gear items are special power-ups that you may either select at the beginning of a mission or collect while on a mission. The following gear items are available in the game:



#### Fire Extinguisher

Fire extinguisher gear will protect you from burn damage caused by phosphorous rounds, scalding steam, and other heat sources.



#### Earplugs

These earplugs will reduce concussion damage caused by explosions.



#### **SCUBA Gear**

During prolonged underwater missions, you will need SCUBA gear to provide you with a steady oxygen supply.



### **Fuzzy Slippers**

In addition to serving as a bold fashion statement, these fuzzy slippers will also reduce movement noise by half.



#### **Bandages**

Always keep bandages handy to reduce bleeding damage caused by dum dum rounds.



#### **Body Armor**

You won't have the opportunity to heal while on a mission, so you'll need to rely on body armor to protect yourself from damage. Be warned that certain types of damage will ignore armor completely, such as that sustained from falling or running out of oxygen. Note: Can only be picked up during missions.



#### **UNITY Ammo Boxes**

Keep an eye out for ammunition boxes. Each can contain various ammunition types. Once the box is empty, it will disappear. Note: Can only be picked up during missions.

# **DEFAULT KEY CONFIGURATION CHART**

Menu	
Quicksave	<f6></f6>
Screenshot	<f8></f8>
Quickload	<f9></f9>
Forward	W
Backward,	S
Step left	A
Step right	D
Turn left	LEFT ARROW
Turn right	RIGHT ARROW
Sidestep	
Run	ENTER
Jump	SPACEBAR
Crouch	C
Turn around	BACKSPACE
Always run	CAPS LOCK

# **Inventory Weapons Control**

Fire	MOUSE 0 (Left Mouse)
Use/activate object	MOUSE 1 (Right Mouse)
Reload Weapon	MOUSE 2 (Middle Mouse
Next ammo type/gadget function	LEFT CTRL
Next weapon/gadget	LEFT SHIFT
Previous weapon/gadget	] (Right Bracket)
Holster weapon	
View inventory	

# **View Controls**

Look Up	PAGE UP
Look Down	PAGE DOWN
Mouse Look	\ (Backslash)
Center View	END
Zoom In	MOUSE WHEEL UP
Zoom Out	MOUSE WHEEL DOWN

### Miscellaneous Controls

Status	TA
View Objectives	.0
Flashlight	
Crosshair Toggle	
Say	
Team Message	

# Mouse

Always Mouse Look	YE:
Mouse Smoothing	3
Invert y axis	NO

# Keyboard

Normal Turn Speed	5
Fast Turn Speed	5
Up/Down Look Speed	
Auto Center	N
Vehicle Turn Speed	E



# **AGENT TRAINING**

Below you will find a list of tips valuable to all UNITY operatives.

### **BASIC TRAINING**

- It's often advisable to move as quietly as possible to avoid detection. The faster you move, the louder your footsteps will be. By walking or moving in a crouch, you reduce the amount of noise you make. Also, certain materials dampen sound better than others. For example, carpet or turf are generally preferable to tile or linoleum.
- Walking into a public area with a weapon drawn is likely to cause a commotion. Unless you want to draw attention to yourself, make sure to put away firearms and other obvious weapons before approaching civilians. Once they're distressed, they probably won't talk to you, so you might miss out on useful information or advice.
- Use the Holster Weapon key to conceal your weapon rapidly. If your weapon is already holstered, hitting this key will draw the last weapon you had out.
- Be careful not to injure civilians! If you kill an innocent bystander, you will fail your mission. You will also fail if three or more bystanders are slain by enemy fire. If you're ever in doubt, look at your crosshair. It will change to indicate the person you're targeting is friendly (see section on crosshairs).
- If you're not sure what to expect around a corner, it is generally safe to step out for a moment to see what's up ahead. As long as you duck back quickly, you probably won't be spotted. Of course, the closer you are to an enemy, the more likely it is that you'll be seen, so listen for footsteps or conversation before leaving cover.
- -Your flashlight is an effective tool, but it can also give away your position. Try not to let enemies see the beam.
- While on a mission, always keep an eye out for miscellaneous intelligence items including letters, packages, film canisters, and briefcases. The more you recover, the better your mission rating will be.
- Keep an eye out for explosive barrels in the various areas. Shooting these red barrels will
  result in large explosions, which can take out defensive positions or distract guards from their
  regular duty.

- Enemies will occasionally show up in cars. To take them out quickly, shoot at the vehicle's gas cap.
- Most weapons will allow you to shoot through glass, with the exception of some types of bulletproof glass. Hiding in a building and sniping through a window can be an effective way to take down the enemy. If you shoot through the glass enough times, it may eventually explode into harmless glass shards.
- Sneaky enemy agents may sometimes hide secret rooms behind ordinary objects. Take special note when your Activate Crosshair appears over an ordinary looking object. Activate or Use the object and watch what happens! In addition, Intelligence Items you find within the level may provide a clue to the location of hidden areas.

#### **WEAPONS & GADGETS TACTICS**

- Make sure to outfit yourself appropriately before embarking on a new mission. UNITY may require you to take certain items or weapons they suspect will be needed during the operation, but you will generally have the opportunity to modify your arsenal according to your personal preferences (See Single Player Menus section).
- Once you have acquired a new weapon, ammunition type, gadget, or gear item, you will generally have access to it from then on, even if you return to an earlier mission. In fact, you will frequently discover that you cannot retrieve all the available intelligence in a mission the first time you attempt it. Only by later returning to the mission with new gadgets can you earn a perfect score.
- The Next Function key is very important. With it, you can cycle through the available ammunition types for a given weapon. More importantly, it cycles through a gadget's various functions. For example, it allows you to toggle between the barrette's lock pick and weapon modes.
- The more rapidly you move, the worse your accuracy becomes. You can group your shots tighter by standing still, but the tradeoff is that you become an easier target for your enemies. When the dynamic crosshair option is enabled in the menu, your crosshair will scale in size to reflect your accuracy. The larger it is, the worse your aim.
- Learn to monitor your ammunition. Reload your weapon between firefights to make sure you don't run empty at inopportune moments.

- You can shoot through certain walls and objects. Of course, doing so may affect the accuracy, range, and velocity of the shot, but it's sometimes preferable to dispatch an enemy before he sees you. Keep an eye out for these materials.
  - A man who knows he's about to die tends to make a good deal more noise than one who expires unexpectedly. Therefore, learn to dispatch enemies while they're unalert. Cries of pain will likely cause a commotion.

#### **ENVIRONMENTAL HAZARDS**

- There are several important things to know about security cameras. First, as tempting as it may be, don't destroy them if you can help it. Whoever is monitoring the security system is likely to send someone to investigate or even sound an alarm if any of the cameras goes out. Instead, try to avoid them altogether. If the light on camera starts flashing yellow, it means you've been detected and the camera is attempting to focus on you. Duck out of sight before you're identified as a threat. If you're close enough to the camera, you'll actually hear it focusing. Listen for it to resume scanning before stepping back into view. Finally, make sure not to leave any bodies lying in view of a camera. That's just as bad as being spotted.
- Searchlights are best avoided. Shooting them out will likely cause every bit as much commotion as being caught in the beam. Figure out their movement patterns before attempting to bypass them. Once you are caught in a searchlight beam, it will track you mercilessly until you leave the area completely.
- On night missions, you'll frequently run into drowsy guards. Watch them carefully to see if they rouse. If so, you can probably time your movements to make sure they're not stirring as you're passing by.
- If you are spotted by dogs, they will begin to bark which may alert nearby guards to your presence. Therefore dogs are best avoided until you obtain access to the Robotic Poodle later in the game.
- You will occasionally be called upon for underwater missions. You can typically remain in small bodies of water as long as you monitor your oxygen supply, but for deep sea diving, you will need SCUBA gear.
- Enemy outposts may be protected with hidden explosive mines. Avoid these areas until you obtain the Sunglasses' Mine Detector.

 Enemy helicopters are more vulnerable in areas such as the rotor. You may also aim for door gunners to take down these pesky and deadly foes.

### **USING VEHICLES**

- Although you cannot use weapons while riding a motorcycle, you're not completely vulnerable. Ramming an enemy at speed is an effective way to clear a path.
- off and deal with the situation. Once the obstacle has been overcome, you can jump back on the vehicle to continue.

#### **MULTIPLAYER TACTICS**

No One Lives Forever provides two modes of play: Standard Deathmatch mode and H.A.R.M.

#### Deathmatch

The object of a Deathmatch is simple: Kill, or be killed. Use any and all weapons and gadgets available on the map to obliterate other players and get the most "frags". Whoever has the most "frags" at the end of the level wins.

To survive in Deathmatch, remember to keep moving. A stationary target is just begging to be shot.

Learn which weapons are best to use in certain situations. For instance, the Bacalov Corrector may be deadly at a distance, but in close quarters, its slow reload time is no match for an AK-47.

#### H.A.R.M. vs. UNITY

In H.A.R.M. vs. Unity games, the objective is to capture as much intelligence for your team as possible. At the start of each level, one intelligence item will appear somewhere in each team's base. Your team's goal is to sneak into the enemy base, find the intelligence item, and then photograph it with your sunglasses. Once an itelligence item is photographed, it will disappear for 30 seconds before responding somewhere within the same base. For each successful capture you make, both yourself and your team will earn points. You will also gain a point for yourself and your team by killing an enemy agent. When the level ends, the team with the most points wins.

Remember that this is a TEAM game. In order to win, you must have both offensive and defensive strategies.

Use the ZOOM feature on your sunglasses to capture intelligence items from a distance. But beware, you are more vulnerable in zoomed mode as you cannot see what's going on around you.

Sunglasses are usually found close to your team's spawn points. Be sure to pick them up before you leave your base!

Watch for Zipcord targets on ceilings and walls. These may provide access to better weapons, sniper points, or alternate access into an enemy base.

When your team's intelligence item is captured, be sure to find the next one quickly in order to set up your defenses before the enemy arrives.

# CREDITS

#### FOX INTERACTIVE

Chris Miller, Producer
Aaron Blean, Associate Producer

# **Fox Quality Assurance Department**

Don Sexton, Q.A. Supervisor Kaycee Vardaman, Q.A. Lead Tim Harrison, Q.A. Lead

#### Test Team (Alphabetical)

Ken Anderson Sweet Billy Tony Black Francis Choi Kristian Davila Matt Dell Michael Dunn David Farkas Kevin Huynh Igor Krinitskiy Javier Lagos Duc Lai Frantz Latten Cris Lee Jeremy Luyties Red Magpantay Kerry Marshall Arabian Nazel Young Park Victor Rodriguez **Gabriel Slater** Jeff Spierer

Jeff Tatman Luke Thai Tim Tran Ellen Williams Chris Wilson

# **Special Thanks**

Tim Godwin Van Riker Marisa Porter Brian Thomas, Fox Library Lisa Fredsti. Fox Library Kathleen Camplin, Fox Library Dave Monroe, Fox Library Mitzi Martin Elite Modeling Karly Young Kyle "Pezman" Peschel Jack Van Leer Karen Mangon Angela Edwards Dave Rech Dave Shaw Danny Ruiz Rozita Tolouev Ivo Gersovich Luke Letizia Tom Gastall Sung Yoo Eric Asevo Iva Mavrovich Jorg Paul Herrmann Merces Silvet Rachel Mills Garza

Christian Kaplan Meg Morman Adam Marcello Ionathon Wolf Gahe Rutman Lee Thornberg Tony Field Michael Blanchard Jeannie Novack Language Insitute Robert Haves Brian Harvey 3DFX Kevin Ragsdale

### **Additional Special Thanks**

MCA 1500 Records Avalon Panasonic Language Institute ATI

Nvidia GameSpy **Brad Zell** David Orin

Kent Ormiston





LINE

cakewalk

t.c. electronic

lexicon

TRIUMPH

#### MONOLITH PRODUCTIONS (Alphabetical)

James Ackley, Lead Sound Designer Scott Albaugh, 2D/3D Artist Kevin Francis, Engine Engineer Jim Geldmacher, Interface Engineer Jon Gramlich, OA Lead Craig Hubbard Game Designer Steve Lee. 2D Artist Brian Long, Al Engineer David Longo, Lead 3D Artist John Mulkey, Level Designer Bob Munsil, Level Designer Brian Pamintuan, Sound Designer Frank Rooke, Level Designer Sasha Runnels, 2D Artist Samantha Rvan, Producer Wes Saulsberry, Art Lead Kevin Stephens, Lead Engineer Akika Tanaka, 2D/3D Artist Cassano Thruston, Sound Designer Bill Vandervoort, Lead Level Designer

# Special Thanks to the following Monolith people whom also contributed greatly to the game:

Matt Allen Kevin Bailey Rhett Baldwin Andrea Barringer Wayne Burns Nadia Eng Ben Chamberlain **Courtney Evans** 

Israel Evans Jay Fuller **Andy Grant** lason Hall Chris Hewett Peter Higley Patti Kail Eric Kohler Darren Korman Gary Kussman Kevin Lambert Spencer Malers Andy Mattingly Eric Minamoto Dan Miller Brad Pendleton Jonathan Stein Jim Totaro Brian Waite Sandra Watanahe

### LITHTECH, INC.

Rachael Blackman Bryan Bouwman Mike Dussault Jeff Evertt Terry Franguladakis Brian Goble Chris Hedberg Matthew Scott

### MUSIC

No One Lives Forever title track created by Rich Ragsdale

Guy Whitmore, Composer and interactive music design

Fric Aho, DirectMusic arranger and additional music composition

Nathan Grigg, DirectMusic arranger and additional music composition

Tobin Buttram, DirectMusic arranger and additional music composition

Lori Goldston, Cello (baguy theme)

Gino, Ambient Vocal (Morrocan theme)

Additional Music Tracks by Becky Kneubuhl Recorded at Asylum Studios

# VOICE AND MOTION CAPTURE ARTISTS

Jock Blanev, Dmitri Volkov Ken Boynton, Santa plus voices too numerous to count! Barbara Dirickson, Baroness Dumas Scott Burns, Various Mike Madeov, Tom Goodman Jamil Mullen, Motion Capture Performer Kit Harris, Cate Archer and Inge Wagner Mark Dias, Various John Patrick Lowrie, Bruno Lawrie Nigel Neale, Mr. Jones Andrew Heffernan, Motion Capture Performer Jenna Hawkins, Motion Capture Performer Roger Curtis, Mr. Smith

Jeff Steitzer, Baron Dumas

David Stalker, Magnus Armstrong

### The Operative: No One Lives Forever **Game of the Year Edition**

# THE OPERATIVE: NO ONE LIVES FOREVER **Product Development**

Chris Miller: Producer Aaron Blean: Associate Producer Tim Hall: Associate Producer

#### **Fox Quality Assurance Department**

Don Sexton: O.A. Manager Igor Krinitskiv: O.A. Assistant Manager OA Lead: Chris Wilson Co-Lead: Tim Harrison Arabian Nazel Kerry Marshall Young Park Francis Choi Ellen Williams

**Aaron Miniares** Joe Lamas

Luke Thai Javier Lagos

#### Third Law Interactive

Larry Herring Matthew Hooper Will Loconto Mike Maynard Mark Morgan David Namaksy Steve Rescoe Jonathan Wright

#### FOX MAP CREDITS **DeathMatchMaps**

Subway DM: Young Park MudTown\_DM: Ian "Mudboy" Miller Ruination DM: Francis Choi Guerilla Night: Francis Choi Guns & HockeyPucks DM: Chris Wilson Checkmate DM: Tim Harrison Ruins\_DM: Tim Harrison Abduction DM: Michael "Gamester" Gehri SpaceCruiser DM: Michael "Gamester" Gehri FastLane: Michael "Mic" Gehri: Arjan "Bloody" Kerren

#### **AssualtMaps**

Treetop Assault AM: Francis Choi; Chris Wilson

Protect the King AM: Tim Harrison Cloud City AM: Aaron Minjares Zipper\_AM: Michael "Gamester" Gehri Abduction\_AM: Michael "Gamester" Gehri Castle AM: Michael "Gamester" Gehri

Special Thanks: A really big "thank you" goes out to Ian Miller, Mic Gehri, and Arian Kerren for your help with the map pack. You guys did an amazing job with the tools and all of us over here at Fox Interactive want you to know that we really appreciate what you guys did. Thanks again.

#### **Vivendi Universal Interactive Publishing**

Sarita Churchill Koren Buckner Angela Emery Neal Johnson Michelle Garnier-Winkler Kathy Carter Grace Ching Miae Kim Michelle Ferrell

#### THIRD PARTY SOFTWARE:

Uses Miles Sound System Copyright (c) 1991-2001 by RAD Game Tools, Inc.

Uses Binks Video Technology Copyright (c) 1994-2001 by RAD Game Tools, Inc.



MPEG Layer-3 playback supplied with the Miles Sound System from RAD Game Tools, Inc. MPEG-3 audio compression technology licensed by Fraunhofer IIS and THOMPSON Multimedia.

@ 2000-2001 Monolith Productions, Inc. All rights reserved. @ 2000-2001 Twentieth Century Fox Film Corporation. Fox Interactive, The Operative, No One Lives Forever and their respective logos are trademarks of Twentieth Century Fox Film Corporation. Sierra and the "S" logo are trademarks of Sierra On-Line, Inc. This product contains the LithTech™ game engine © 1998-2001 LithTech, Inc. All rights reserved. LithTech is a trademark of LithTech, Inc. Uses Bink Video @ 1997-201 by RAD Game Tools, Inc. Uses Miles Sound System @ 1991-2001 by RAD Game Tools, Inc. Miles 3D Realistic Sound Experience (RSX) Software Copyright @ 1997-2001 by Intel Corporation and RAD Game Tools, Inc. MPEG Layer-3 playback supplied with the Miles Sound System from RAD Game Tools, Inc. MPEG Layer-3 audio compression technology licensed by Fraunhofer IIS and THOMSON multimedia. The ratings icon is a registered trademark or trademark of the IDSA. Windows is a registered trademark or trademark of Microsoft Corporation. registered in the U.S. and/or other countries. Pentium is a registered trademark of Intel Corp. All other marks are the property of their respective owners.

# Customer Service, Support, and Sales

#### **United States**

U.S.A. Sales Phone: (800) 757-7707 Hours: 24 hours a day, 7 days a week International Sales: (425) 746-5771 Hours: Monday-Friday 8 AM to 4 PM PST

FAX: (916) 939-1010

# Sierra Direct

P 0 Box 629001 El Dorado Hills, CA 95762-9972

Email: customer.support@sierra.com

http://www.sierra.com

### **United Kingdom**

Vivendi Universal Interactive Publishing UK Ltd.

Main: (0118) 920-9111

Monday-Friday, 9:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.

Fax: (0118) 987-5603

Disk/CD replacements in the U.K. are £6.00, or £7.00 outside the UK. Add "ATTN.:

Returns."

2 Beacontree Plaza, Gillette Way,

Reading, Berkshire

RG2 OBS United Kingdom

### France

Vivendi Universal Interactive Publishing France

32, Av de l'Europe

Bât Energy 1 (2e étage)

78 140 VELIZY-Villacoubaly - France

Téléphone: 01-30-67-90-50

Lundi au Jeudi de 10h à 19h

Vendredi de 10h à 18h

Fax: 01-30-67-90-65

#### Germany

Vivendi Universal Interactive Publishing Deutschland Gmbh.

Tel: (0) 6103-99-40-40

Montag bis Freitag von 10h - 19Uhr

Fax: (0) 6103-99-40-35 Paul-Ehrlich-Straße la 63225 Langen

Deutschland

#### **On-Line Sales**

CompuServe United Kingdom:GO UKSIERRA

CompuServe France: GO FRSIERRA Internet USA: http://www.sierra.com

Internet United Kingdom:

http://www.sierra-online.co.uk Internet France: http://www.sierra.fr Internet Germany: http://www.sierra.de

Disk and or Manual Replacement:

Product Returns\*:

Vivendi Universal Interactive Publishing International

Sierra On-Line Returns

Fresno, CA 93725

Vivendi Universal Interactive Publishing International

Sierra On-Line CD/Doco Replacement

4247 S. Minnewawa Ave.

Fresno, CA 93725

NOTE: To replace your cd(s) please send only the damaged cd and copy of your dated Receipt, if less then 90 days. After 90 days please include a \$10.00 handling fee along with the cd(s). For Documentation replacement, please include a \$5.00 handling fee and a photocopy ONLY of either your disk or cd. Payment should be made at the time of your request. Sorry, no credit cards.

<sup>\*</sup> Returns to this address valid in North America only.

# **NOTICE TO USER:**

YOU SHOULD CAREFULLY READ THE FOLLOWING END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT BEFORE INSTALLING THIS SOFTWARE PROGRAM. BY INSTALLING OR OTHERWISE USING THE SOFTWARE PROGRAM, YOU AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT. IF YOU DO NOT AGREE TO THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT, PROMPTLY RETURN THE UNUSED SOFTWARE PROGRAM TO THE PLACE OF PURCHASE OR CONTACT SIERRA ON-LINE, INC. CUSTOMER SERVICE AT (425) 746-5771 FOR A FULL REFUND OF THE PURCHASE PRICE WITHIN 30 DAYS OF THE ORIGINAL PURCHASE.

This software program (the "Program"), any printed materials, any on-line or electronic documentation, and any and all copies and derivative works of such software program (including materials created with a so called level editor, if included) and materials are the copyrighted works of Twentleth Century Fox Film Corporation ("Fox") and is distributed by Sierra On-Line, Inc., a division of Vivendi Universal Interactive Publishing North America, Inc. All rights reserved, except as expressly stated herein. All use of the Program is governed by the terms of this End User License Agreement provided below ("License Agreement."). The Program is solely for use by end users according to the terms of the License Agreement. Any use, reproduction or redistribution of the Program not in accordance with the terms of the License Agreement is expressly prohibited.

#### END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT

1. Limited Use License. Sierra On-Line, Inc. ("Sierra") hereby grants, and by installing the Program you thereby accept, a limited, non-exclusive license and right to install and use one (1) copy of the Program for your use on either a home, business or portable computer. In addition, the Program may have a multiplayer capability that allows users to utilize the Program over the Internet via Sierra's online game network Sierra.com or other gaming networks. Use of the Program over Sierra.com is subject to your acceptance of Sierra.com's or such other gaming networks's Terms of Use Agreement. Sierra On-Line, Inc. reserves the right to update, modify or change the Sierra.com Terms of Use Agreement at any time. The Program may also contain a Level Editor (the "Editor") that allows you to create custom levels or other materials for your personal use in connection with the Program ("New Materials"). All use of the Editor or any New Materials is subject to this License Agreement. The Program is licensed, not sold. Your license confers no title or ownership in the Program.

2. Ownership. All title, ownership rights and intellectual property rights in and to the Program and any and all copies thereof (including but not limited to any titles, computer code, themes, objects, characters, character names, stories, dialog, catch phrases, locations, concepts, artwork, animations, sounds, musical compositions, audio-visual effects, methods of operation, moral rights, any related documentation, and "applets" incorporated into the Program) are owned by Fox or its licensors. The Program is protected by the copyright laws of the United States, international copyright treaties and conventions and other laws. All rights are reserved. The Program contains certain licensed materials and Fox and its licensors may protect their rights in the event of any violation of this Agreement.

#### 3. Responsibilities of End User.

A. Subject to the Grant of License hereinabove, you may not, in whole or in part, copy, photocopy, reproduce, translate, reverse engineer, derive source code, modify, disassemble, decompile, create derivative works based on the Program, or remove any proprietary notices or labels on the Program without the prior consent, in writing, of Sierra.

B. The Program is licensed to you as a single product. Its component parts may not be separated for use on more than one computer.

C. You are entitled to use the Program for your own use, but you are not entitled to:

(i) sell, grant a security interest in or transfer reproductions of the Program to other parties in any way, nor to rent, lease or license the Program to others without the prior written consent of Sierra.

(ii) exploit the Program or any of its parts for any commercial purpose including, but not limited to, use at a cyber caf£, computer gaming center or any other location-based site. Sierra may offer a separate Site License Agreement to permit you to make the Program available for commercial use. Please contact Sierra for details:

(iii)host or provide matchmaking services for the Program or emulate or redirect the communication protocols used by Sierra in the network feature of the Program, through protocol emulation, tunneling, modifying or adding components to the Program, use of a utility program or any other techniques now known or hereafter developed, for any purpose including, but not limited to network play over the Internet, network play utilizing commercial or non-commercial gaming networks or as part of content aggregation networks without the prior written consent of Sierra;

(iv) create or maintain, under any circumstance, more than one simultaneous connection to Sierra.com. All such connections to Sierra.com, whether created by the Program or by other tools and utilities, may only be made through methods and means expressly approved by Sierra On-Line, Inc. Under no circumstances may you connect, or create tools that allow you to connect to Sierra.com's private binary interface or interfaces other than those explicitly provided by Sierra On-Line, Inc. for public use.

4. Program Transfer. You may permanently transfer all of your rights under this License Agreement, provided the recipient agrees to the terms of this License Agreement and you agree to remove the Program from your home or portable computer.

5. Termination. This License Agreement is effective until terminated. You may terminate the License Agreement at any time by destroying the Program. Sierra may, at its discretion, terminate this License Agreement in the event that you fail to comply with the terms and conditions contained herein. In such event, you must immediately destroy the Program.

6. Export Controls. The Program may not be re-exported, downloaded or otherwise exported into (or to a national or resident of) any country to which the U.S. has embargoed goods, or to anyone on the U.S. Treasury Department's list of Specially Designated Nationals or the U.S. Commerce Department's Table of Denial Orders. By installing the Program, you are agreeing to the foregoing and you are representing and warranting that you are not located in, under the control of, or a national or resident of any such country or on any such list.

7. Limited Warranty. Sierra and Fox expressly disclaim any warranty for the Program, Editor and Manual(s) are provided "as is" without warranty of any kind, either express or implied, including, without limitation, the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, or noninfringement. The entire risk arising out of use or performance of the Program and Manual(s) remains with the User, however Sierra warrants up to and including 90 days from the date of your purchase of the Program that the media containing the Program shall be free from defects in material and workmanship. In the event that the media proves to be defective during that time period, and upon presentation to Sierra of proof of purchase of the defective Program, Sierra will at its option 1) correct any defect, 2) provide you with a product of equal or lesser value, or 3) refund your money. Some states do not allow the exclusion or limitation of limplied warranties or liability for incidental damages, so the above limitations may not apply to you.

8. Limitation of Liability. NEITHER FOX, SIERRA, VIVENDI UNIVERSAL INTERACTIVE PUBLISHING NORTH AMERICA, INC., OR THEIR PARENTS, SUBSIDIARIES OR AFFILIATES, SHALL BE LIABLE IN ANY WAY FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE OF ANY KIND RESULTING FROM THE USE OF THE PROGRAM OR USE OF SIERRA ON-LINE, INC.'S ONLINE GAME NETWORK, SIERRA.COM INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOSS OF GOOD-WILL. WORK STOPPAGE, COMPUTER FAILURE OR MALFUNCTION, OR ANY AND ALL OTHER COMMERCIAL DAMAGES OR LOSSES, SIERRA FURTHER DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES WITH REGARD TO YEAR 2000 COMPLIANCE OF THE SOFTWARE, ANY WARRANTY AGAINST INFRINGEMENT THAT MAY BE PROVIDED IN SECTION 2-312(3) OF THE UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE AND/OR IN ANY OTHER COMPARABLE STATE STATUTE IS EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED, FURTHER, SIERRA ON-LINE, INC. SHALL NOT BE LIABLE IN ANY WAY FOR THE LOSS OR DAMAGE TO PLAYER CHARACTERS, ACCOUNTS, STATISTICS OR USER PROFILE INFORMATION STORED ON SIERRA.COM. I UNDERSTAND AND ACKNOWLEDGE THAT SIERRA ON-LINE, INC. CANNOT AND WILL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY INTURUPTIONS OF SERVICE ON SIERRA.COM INCLUDING. BUT NOT LIMITED TO ISP DISRUPTIONS, SOFTWARE OR HARDWARE FAILURES OR ANY OTHER EVENT WHICH MAY RESULT IN A LOSS OF DATA OR DISRUPTION OF SERVICE. Some states do not allow the exclusion or limitation of incidental or consequential damages, or allow limitations on how long an implied warranty lasts, so the above limitations may not apply.

9. Equitable Remedies. You hereby agree that Fox and/or Sierra would be irreparably damaged if the terms of this License Agreement were not specifically enforced, and therefore you agree that Fox and/or Sierra shall be entitled, without bond, other security, or proof of damages, to appropriate equitable remedies with respect to breaches of this License Agreement, in addition to such other remedies as Fox and/or Sierra may otherwise have available to it under applicable laws. In the event any litigation is brought by either party in connection with this License Agreement, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to recover from the other party all the costs, attorneys' fees and other expenses incurred by such prevailing party in the litigation.

10. Limitations on License. Nothing in this License Agreement shall preclude you from making or authorizing the making of another copy or adaptation of the Program provided, however, that (1) such new copy or adaptation is created as an essential step in your utilization of the Program in accordance with the terms of this License Agreement and for NO OTHER PURPOSE; or (2) such new copy or adaptation.

tion is for archival purposes ONLY and all archival copies are destroyed in the event of your Transfer of the Program, the Termination of this Agreement or other circumstances under which your continued use of the Program ceases to be rightful.

1.1. Miscellaneous. This License Agreement shall be deemed to have been made and executed in the State of California and any dispute arising hereunder shall be resolved in accordance with the law of California. You agree that any claim asserted in any legal proceeding by one of the parties against the other shall be commenced and maintained in any state or federal court located in the State of California, County of Los Angeles, having subject matter jurisdiction with respect to the dispute between the parties. This License Agreement may be amended, altered or modified only by an instrument in writing, specifying such amendment, alteration or modification, executed by both parties. In the event that any provision of this License Agreement shall be held by a court or other tribunal of competent jurisdiction to be unearly office of the parties of this License Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. This License Agreement constitutes and contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any prior or all or written agreements.

I hereby acknowledge that I have read and understand the foregoing License Agreement and agree that the action of installing the Program is an acknowledgment of my agreement to be bound by the terms and conditions of the License Agreement contained herein. I also acknowledge and agree that this License Agreement is the complete and exclusive statement of the agreement between Sierra and I and that the License Agreement supersedes any prior or contemporaneous agreement, either oral or written, and any other communications between Sierra and myself. LGL\183216 v1 MCO 07-02-01